
 Credit River Township 
Meeting Minutes 

June 2, 2008 
 

 

Call to Order  
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

Members Present: 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer, Supervisor Brent Lawrence, and Supervisor Bruce Nilsen, 
Supervisor Al Aspengren, Supervisor Tom Kraft.  

 

Others Present:  
 

Township Clerk Jerry Maas, Township Treasurer Holly Batton, Township Engineer Shane 
Nelson, Former Township Engineer Jeff Elliott, Township Attorney Bob Ruppe.  

 

Meeting Minutes 
 

Chairman Schommer asked if there were any corrections to the minutes for the May 19th, 
meeting. Supervisor Bruce Nilsen requested that the minutes reflect a comment he made 
regarding the Township contribution to the Huntington Way road project. It was also 
noted that the request for a water permit fee in the Stonebridge project was coming from 
the Minnesota Department of Health, not the MPCA. 
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a motion to approve the minutes with the noted 
corrections. Supervisor Al Aspengren offered a second, all in favor, motion carried 5 Ð 0 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer acknowledged that we now have a new table for the 
Supervisors to sit at meetings due to the efforts of Supervisor Tom Kraft and that Mr. Jeff 
Elliott has left the employ of Hakanson Anderson and that Engineer Shane Nelson will be 
our new engineer from the same firm. 

 

Sheriff’s Report 
 
 A Scott County Deputy dropped off the May report prior to the meeting. Clerk Maas noted 

that we had 120 Sheriff calls in the month of May, which is quite typical for this time of the 
year. 

 

Open Forum 
 

1) Resident Lorie Roberts of 6916 Flemming Circle. Noted that the yard in the property 
on the corner of 174th Street and Texas Ave. is not being properly kept up as far as 
keeping the lawn mowed.  

 

Chairman Leroy Schommer noted that he has already been in contact with the Real 
Estate firm selling the home and given them a deadline to take care of the problem. 
 

In the event the Township has difficulty is finding a contractor to take care of this, 
resident Greg Brown noted that he knows a person who has started a business with 
the express purpose of taking care of distressed properties. He will email Chairman 
Schommer the name of the contact. 

 

2) Resident Cathy Haugh noted that she has attended several meetings over the last 
few months and would like to have the Board consider that agenda not be modified 
after publication in the local newspaper except in the case of an emergency topic that 
needs to be discussed. 

 



Attorney Bob Ruppe cautioned the Board that they would need to remain flexible on 
this issue because situations arise where deadlines need to e observed, 

 

She also noted that extra copies of the agenda had been provided this evening and 
was hopeful that this practice would continue. She is also asking that the approved 
minutes be posted to the Internet in a more timely fashion.  
 

Mrs. Haugh also wanted the opportunity to read in full the email that resident Jay 
Saterbak had provided to the Board at last weeks meeting where he was adamant in 
stating his position that the email address list used by the Clerk for newsletters is in 
fact Township property as he recalls certain lists being gathered at Township 
functions and he is of the opinion that these were in turn used by the Clerk in 
compiling his list which he is also of the opinion that the Clerk used for political gain. 
 

The Board thanked Mrs. Haugh for her input. 
 

3) Tim Conroy of 17215 Johanna Drive asked the Board if a policy can be adopted to 
clean up the Casey Addition neighborhood that was now being overrun with excess 
vehicles many of which are inoperable, that some homes are being occupied by 
more that the legal number of persons allowed to live in a single family residence and 
that there are large amounts of junk in many of the yards.  

 

Chairman Leroy Schommer noted that the Township has actively pursued complaints 
on a number of issues in the past such as dirt bikes and landscaping issues related 
to the right-of-way. 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence noted that a car that had been illegally parked had been 
towed last week. Supervisor Lawrence wondered if the residents of CaseyÕs Addition 
might not consider forming a homeowners group to address some of these issues in 
the future.  
 

Treasurer Holly Batton suggested that perhaps forming a Neighborhood Watch 
Group might be an approach for starters.  
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer indicated that he has received enough complaints that 
should warrant the Board taking strong action on these complaints.  
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen cautioned that we of course have limits of authority as 
respects property rights. He further noted that we donÕt have the staff to actively 
patrol the neighborhoods and look for problems and that we have typically operated 
by only responding to complaints by neighbors. 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence noted that Scott County has rules related to many of 
these issues and that perhaps we can ask the Code Enforcement Officer to become 
more involved on specific cases. 
 

Supervisor Al Aspengren asked Mr. Conroy about the number of places he felt were 
in violation and Mr. Conroy indicated that there were about 8 to 10. He provided a list 
of the addresses he was concerned about. 

  

Engineers Report 
 

1) Discuss 210th Street Road Improvement 
 

Engineer Jeff Elliott noted that at the last meeting he presented some general 
information relative to the condition of 210th Street and it was his intention to go into 
greater detail this evening. 
 

210th Street is approximately 3550 feet long from Clemwood Drive to Highway 27 and 
there exists a cul-de-sac on the eastern end. 
 



Proper design standards required by the Township specify an approved sub-grade 
with 9 inches of class 5 gravel and 4 inches of bituminous applied on top. We 
currently have a width of 28 foot of gravel which would accommodate a standard 26 
foot road width. 
 

Engineer ElliottÕs estimate at this time for the total cost of surfacing 210th Street is 
$305,120. 
 

Engineer Elliott noted that the Harvest Ridge DeveloperÕs Agreement discussed the 
paving of 210th and specifically identified two properties that would not be assessed 
and two properties that would be assessed and his conclusion was that surfacing this 
road had always been considered as a potential assessment project.  
 

As for monies that might be collected from the Territory project, Engineer Elliott noted 
that the Township could reasonably expect to collect approximately $200,000 from lot 
fees designated, but the question would be as to when this money could be 
expected.  
 

Regarding Nevada Ave., Mr. ElliottÕs engineers evaluation at this would be to 
propose constructing a  22 ft wide road at a total estimated cost of $168,458. 
 
In response to a question, Mr. Elliott noted that currently Right Turn Lanes would be 
estimated to cost $50K, while By-Pass Lanes might be expected to cost $75K not 
including easement acquisition costs. 
 

Supervisor Al Aspegren asked the residents if the general consensus was to get the 
road paved earlier than might be expected if we wait until the planned Territory is 
developed. The response from the residents in attendance was overwhelming in 
favor of having this road paved as early as possible. 
 

One of the residents noted that the property owners on Clemwood had been 
assessed $87K as a part of their lot costs when they acquired their properties with 
the purpose of having the then deficient road brought up to the standard for gravel 
roads at that time. 
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen noted that in his opinion, the Township should consider 
fronting some of these costs of surfacing the road based on expected monies coming 
in the future. 
 

Supervisor Al Aspengren asked if the residents would be agreeable to accepting at 
least a partial assessment. Again, the response was favorable. 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft asked if plans call for adjusting the grade on Nevada Ave. in 
view of some of the residents concerns expressed last week on this issue. Engineer 
Jeff Elliott indicated that there would not be much of an adjustment. Several residents 
indicated that the grade of the hill isnÕt much of a problem. 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer expressed concern that as far as Nevada Ave is 
concerned, that if future development came forward, we might be faced with having 
to tear all of this construction out and rebuilding to a wider standard. 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft was of the opinion that current residents should not be charged 
for a 26 ft wide road in that this is not needed at this time. It was his thought that 
future development ought to pay this extra cost. 
 

Both Chairman Leroy Schommer and Supervisor Bruce Nilson expressed the thought 
of leaving Nevada Ave. up to the residents with the suggestion being offered that 
they might want to present a petition. 
 



Supervisor Tom Kraft made a motion authorize that a Feasibility Study for 210th 
Street and Nevada Ave. be prepared. Supervisor Al Aspengren offered a second, all 
in favor, motion carried 5 Ð 0 

 
2) Feasibility Study – Whitewood Ave. / Birch Road 
 

Engineer Shane Nelson presented the requested Feasibility Study for this project.  
 

He noted that site visits indicated there were portions of the road had as little as 1 
inch of bituminous surface which is an indication of why the road needs extensive 
work at this time. 
 

The total engineering cost estimate is for this project is $552,510 with 54 properties 
sharing this cost with a total per lot cost of $10,230 per parcel. 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer noted that it was his opinion that the Board should also 
consider contributing the annual maintenance cost to this project also. 
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a motion to adopt a Resolution # 2008-08 to set a 
Public Improvement Hearing for this project on July 7th at 6:00 pm at the Town Hall. 
Supervisor Tom Kraft offered a second, all in favor, motion carried 5- 0. 
 

Upon the recommendation of Attorney Bob Ruppe, Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a 
motion as a part of the previous Resolution to accept the Feasibility Report and order 
plans and specs for this project in order that it might move forward in a timely fashion. 
Supervisor Al Aspengren offered a second, all in favor, motion carried 5 Ð 0. 
 

It was noted that I all goes according to plan, the target project start date would be 
August 18th and that we would expect it to be completed by September 30th. 
 

Attorney Ruppe noted that there are very specific noticing requirements both for 
Posting and Publishing. It is planned that we would publish the notices in the 
newspapers on June 14th and June 21st and Post the notice on the board on June 5th. 

 
3) Feasibility Study – Huntington Way 
 

Once again, Engineer Shane Nelson presented the requested Feasibility Report. 
 

He noted that the engineers estimated cost is $342,080 for a 22 ft wide road and with 
13 parcels expected to share in the project, the cost per parcel would be estimated at 
$26,200. 
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen noted that recent conversations indicated that at some point 
in the future the possibility exists where the entire Township might assume full 
responsibility for the entire project, similar to what the City of Lakeville is doing for 
their one-half of the Judicial Road project. It was his opinion that if that eventuality 
ever came to fruition, that some sort of a crediting system would need to be created 
in order to reimburse residents who had to stand the entire costs at this time.    
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a motion to adopt Resolution 2008-09 to accept the 
Feasibility Reports, order the plans and specs and set a date for Public Hearing on 
July 7th at 6:30 pm for the Huntington Way project. Supervisor Brent Lawrence 
offered a second, all in favor, motion carried 5 Ð 0.  

 

4) Discuss NPDES Annual Report 
 
Supervisor Al Aspengren noted that tomorrow, June 3rd  there will be a presentation 
at Scott County at 9:30 am regarding the MS4 program related to the National 
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). He is planning on attending on 
behalf of the Township.  
 



He further noted that we will be required to submit our Annual Report under this 
program by June 30th. He and Engineer Shane Nelson will assume responsibility for 
compiling and submitting this report by the end of the month 
 

In addition to inspecting all of our construction sites, another requirement under this 
program is that we map and inspect the entire Township storm water management 
system, which is basically the ditch/culvert conveyance system. He reported that he 
had fulfilled that requirement last year while working as a consultant for the 
Township. 
 

The next requirement under this phase of the program is to make arrangements that 
proper maintenance (cleaning) of this conveyance system is carried out on an annual 
basis. Last year he has identified a number of the worst obstructed culverts and we 
attempted to develop a program to have the residents take responsibility for cleaning 
their own culverts. This did not get started last year for a variety of reasons and 
Supervisor Aspengren noted that we need to embark on an aggressive program for 
getting these cleaned out this year.  
 

Supervisor Aspengren presented a draft letter to residents that he intends to review 
and develop further in order to get this task accomplished 
 

Resident Dave Cuthill asked if this type of work ought to be considered normal 
maintenance for the Township. It was noted that culverts exist in order to provide 
access to a property which is an item associated with ownership and therefore 
becomes the homeownerÕs responsibility. 
 

Supervisor Aspengren indicated that there were approximately 30 blocked culverts. 
 

The Board asked that we put this topic on the agenda for the next meeting and 
develop a workable plan to solve it. They asked that copies of the list of obstructed 
culverts be provided to each Board member. 
 

Resident Greg Brown noted that many residents may lack the equipment or the skills 
required to perform this task and suggested that we offer alternatives to those who 
are unable to comply. 
 

Resident Ruth Mcleod inquired about the cost to clean one culvert. Supervisor 
Aspengren suggested that it would be approximately $100 per culvert. 
 

In the absence of any further discussion, the Board asked that further discussion on 
this topic be tabled until next meeting. 
 

Status of New Website 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence noted that he had met recently with Treasurer Holly Batton, 
resident Greg Brown and the Wecetera people to review status on this effort. It was his 
desire that the website be operational no later than June 10th. 

 

The address of this new official website will be www.creditriver-mn.gov 
 

Park Report 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence noted that he recently toured the Township parks. He noted 
that he had performed some minor repair work as follows: 

 

a) a stump was removed from the Creekwood Park 
b) repaired a swing in the CaseyÕs Addition 
 

He also noted that the Country Court Park had a swing missing and that the park needs 
cutting. 

 



The Board asked that Supervisor Lawrence make arrangement to meet with the Mowing 
Contractor to review his work. 
 

He reported that the park in Scotts View Acres is in very good shape. 
 

Resident Mark Batton noted that he and other residents had been applying Round-Up 
weed killer in recent years as well as taking responsibility for dragging the infield of the 
ball diamond. He wondered if the Township would be prepared to take on this 
responsibility? 

 

Supervisor Lawrence concluded his report by noting that much to his satisfaction, the 
Township Parks are being used. 

 

Review Concept Plan for Red Fox Development 
 

The developer requesting the project failed to make an appearance. 
 

Property owner Bill Gallagher inquired as to the identification of the developer requesting 
that this project be considered. He noted that whoever he is, does not specifically own 
the property. 

 

Mark Zweber – Discuss Liberty Creek Project 
 

Developer Mark Zweber had asked to be scheduled on the agenda at the last meeting 
when he presented some information as to his plans for the Liberty Creek Project. He 
wondered if the Board had any questions that he might be able to assist with this 
evening. 
 

The Board noted that they were under the impression that Mr. Zweber was intending on 
restarting the project but in checking with the County they had been told that there has 
been no submittal made as yet. 
 

Mr. Zweber noted that he has just recently met with the County and that he has a 
tentative DRT meeting scheduled for June 18th. 
 

Mr. Zweber stated that when he originally started the Liberty Creek project he had been 
mandated by the requirements of the AUAR study to access the project through the 
adjacent Territory project and that is how the design was approached. At the eleventh 
when Mr. Zweber was faced with critical deadlines being approached as the project was 
nearing the final approval stage, the county re-structured itÕs requirements and required 
that he specifically not access Liberty Creek through the Territory, but that he must erect 
a barricade between Liberty Creek and the Territory and that he must access Liberty 
Creek from the West via a road that will cost him $500,000 to build. 
 

It is his contention that this is an unreasonable requirement.  
 

Territory residents Dawn Meyers, Mr. & Mrs. Steve Knutson and Bruce Hennen appeared 
To voice their objection about this apparent reversal of the approved Plat as it exists 
currently. 
 

Mr. Hennen noted that the Territory trail system isnÕt completed at this time and to allow 
additional traffic at this time would constitute a safety issue. 
 

Developer Gary Laurent of Laurent Development noted that he intends to take the same 
position as his firm has in the past and noted a letter sent to the Board today affirming 
their position 
 

Mr. Zweber asked that he be given a copy of this latest letter. 
 

 
 
 



Treasurer’s Report 
 

1) PERA Program 
 

Treasurer Holly Batton presented some information on the Public Employees 
Retirement Assistance (PERA) program. She noted that as elected officials, both the 
Board and elected staff have the option to participate.  
 

She asked if any members of the Board have any interest in this program and further 
asked that we place it on the agenda for the next meeting for more extensive 
discussion and consider passing a resolution authorizing participation in this 
program.  
 

The Board asked that the topic be added to the agenda. 
 

Other Business 
 

1) Discuss and Finalize Policy on Road Repairs 
 

Attorney Bob Ruppe submitted a revised policy incorporating the language asked for 
to address the deficiencies of the previous policy. 
 

Supervisor Al Aspengren wasnÕt comfortable with this new language and suggested 
that the Board consider using a concept of having a list of Òstanding contractorsÓ 
available to do the work that would be considered approved, licensed, and insured. 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer noted that such a list could be easily assembled based 
on our current list of approved vendors. 
 

Attorney Bob Ruppe noted that we should consider writing a statement in the policy 
as to who should be used in an emergency. 
 

Chairman Schommer and Supervisor Nilsen will supply Treasurer Batton and the 
new Board Members a list of names.  
 

Based on the results of this discussion, Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a motion to 
adopt Policy # 2006-002A. Supervisor Tom Kraft offered a second, all in favor, 
motion carried 5 Ð 0 
 

2) Policy on Yard Signs 
 
In response to a resident Dave CuthillÕs observation at the last meeting that we are 
seeing a proliferation of various yard signs, Supervisor Tom Kraft gathered some 
information on the County requirements for sign placement on County roads. 
 

Mr. Cuthill is concerned about his personal liability if he confiscates the sign and is 
asking that the Board supply some information that would inform potential violators 
that it is not acceptable to places signs in the Township road-right-of way. 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft suggested that Clerk Jerry Maas might consider placing some 
information on this topic in his next newsletter? 
 

Attorney Bob Ruppe noted that he has recently been involved in similar discussions 
with St. Laurence Township and that he had drafted a letter for that Township to send 
to violators. He would make it a point to send us a copy. 
 

3) Policy and Sediment and Erosion Control 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft noted that based on his experience with this program we need 
to fine-tune the process.  
 



Supervisor Bruce Nilsen stated that it is his opinion that this entire program lacks the 
enforcement power to insure it can be administered properly both at SWCD and Scott 
County.  
 

Engineer Jeff Elliott noted that Scott County is now actively promoting the fact that 
they can offer the same services. The Board suggested that Supervisor Kraft call 
Steve Horsman, Scott County Building Official, and discuss the issue with him. 

 

4) Follow Through and Email / Letters 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft reviewed a list of a number of recent resident comments with 
the rest of the Board with the intention of insuring that these items were being 
addressed and closed. 
 

The items identified as still open were as follows: 
 

1) Weed control in the Territory 
 

2) Variance Request for the Minneapolis Gun Club as to the 5-ton load limit for 
Judicial Road 

 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen will discuss with the Gun Club. The thought was 
that the Gun Club ought to request permission on a case-by-case basis 
as required so the Township knows what is going on. 
 

The Board also asked Supervisor Aspengren to meet with the resident 
operating a boulder business out of his home on Judicial Road 
 

3) The request to use the Township Roads for a Triathlon meet to use our roads 
 

Chairman Schommer suggested we ask that he come to the next 
meeting to discuss 

 

4) The letters to the paving contractors on the 185th Street re-construction and the 
resultant road damage to Judicial Road 

 

While we have received a response from one of the contractors, the 
Board asked that we table further discussion pending receipt of a 
response for the other contractor. 

 

5) Discuss Maintenance of Northern Section of County Road 75 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence noted that this issue has arisen because when we are 
called upon to pick up debris, the question is who is responsible. In that it is a county 
road (75), and given the fact that we are contracting to maintain this road on an 
interim basis, are we responsible, or is the City of Savage responsible for 
maintenance and debris removal? 
 

It was asked does our existing or pending contract with Scott County include garbage 
pickup? 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer suggested that when we finalize our Turnback 
Agreement with Scott County, that we be sure to include the City of Savage in the 
discussions. 
 

6) Discuss Township Sign Requirements 
 

Chairman Leroy Schommer noted that another issue that has arisen out of the 
picking up of debris on County Road 75 is the fact that specifically locating the 
Township border is not that obvious and suggests that we order additional signs 
identifying the border as we currently have placed on the other highways. 
 



Supervisor Bruce Nilsen also noted that in his opinion we ought to order signs that 
only specify a fine for Òillegal dumpingÓ, but also offer an award for reporting those 
who are observed to be dumping illegally.  
 

The Board asked Attorney Bob Ruppe to develop an ordinance that would address 
these issues. 
 

Resident Cathy Haugh noted that they observe people at all hours in the process of 
dumping trash and feels that this ordinance would be a very effective tool in 
controlling this practice. 
 

In response to an ongoing and growing problem at the entrance to the Creekwood 
Development, the Board discussed the possibility that ÒNo ParkingÓ signs be erected. 
 

Supervisor Brent Lawrence made a motion to install ÒNo Parking Here to CornerÓ 
signs on each side Creekwood Road at the entrance to the Creekwood 
Development. Supervisor Al Aspengren offered a second, all in favor, motion carried 
5 Ð 0. 
 

7) Upcoming DRT Meeting 
 

The Board decided that since the meeting has been posted, Supervisors Kraft, 
Aspengren and Nilsen should attend the meeting set for Wednesday, June 4th at 8:30 
am at Scott County. 
 

8) Culvert Cleaning 
 

The Town Board authorized Attorney Bob Ruppe to research the authority of the 
Town Board to require residents to maintain their culverts without elector 
authorization. 

 

9) Future Projects where Land Owner is not involved in the Presentation 
 

Supervisor Bruce Nilsen noted that in view of the situation that happened earlier this 
evening, we need to insure projects are prepaid in the case where the landowner is 
not bringing the project forward. 
 

In these cases, the Township has expended funds in reviewing the project only to 
find out it canÕt go forward do to issues between the property owner and the 
proposed developer. 
 

It was decided to discuss this issue with Marty Schmitz at Scott County.  
 

10) Attorney Bills 
 

Supervisor Tom Kraft had some questions regarding recent billings from the Town 
Attorney. 

 

a) Malacha Trucking 
 

Supervisor Kraft noted that we have spent close to $600 in attorney fees 
communicating and resolving a mistake in awarding of the rock hauling 
contract earlier this year. 
 

Attorney Ruppe reviewed the background of what had happened and noted 
that he responded to several phone calls from Malacha Trucking regarding 
this issue, to research the legal claims being asserted by the trucking 
company and to send several letters to the Malacha Trucking firm to re-
iterate our position that we were not at fault in rescinding the original award 
and subsequently awarding the contact to Klingberg Trucking out of Jordan. 

 

b) Issue of Urban Powers 
 



Attorney Ruppe noted that he had received a phone call from Treasurer 
Batton noting that the County Auditor does not have a record of our filing a 
resolution claiming urban town powers on file as required by Minnesota law. 
 

Attorney Ruppe has asked Clerk Jerry Maas to review the town minutes from 
the last several years to make a determination if this resolution has ever 
been passed. 
 

Nothing has surfaced to date. In the event that we are unable to locate this, 
we will have to prepare and adopt a resolution at a later date. 
 

c) Conversation with the Springstad Financial Company 
 

Treasurer Batton had been conducting discussions with this company a 
number of months ago, but can recollect no recent conversations that might 
have precipitated a conversation between Attorney Ruppe and that firm.  
 

Attorney Ruppe can only recollect receiving a call from a member of that 
company, citing the firmÕs contact with Treasurer Batton, who requested 
information regarding the TownshipÕs incorporation plans and need for a 
fiscal impact study. 
 

Supervisor Kraft will call Springstad and get a clarification 
 

d) Conversations with MAT 
 

Supervisor Kraft noted that it appeared that the Township was paying for 
conversations imitated by MAT attorney Dan Greensweig to Mr. Ruppe and 
he wanted a clarification. It was Supervisor Krafts understanding that we 
have the opportunity to receive free legal advice from MAT and that this 
benefit is negated when we incur legal expense from the Town Attorney. 
 

Mr. Ruppe noted that this particular situation arose out of a phone call to 
MAT from Treasurer Batton inquiring as to the legal requirement to post a 
meeting notice in the case of the Town Board canvassing the election 
results. In that this took place on election day, Mr. Greensweig was 
concerned that the Township could be facing some sort of an election 
challenge and immediately called the Town Attorney to alert him to this fact. 
While it was later established that there is no legal requirement to post this 
notice, none the less, Mr. Ruppe advised Clerk jerry Maas to post the notice 
and schedule a canvas meeting to be in compliance with this posting. 
 

Mr. Ruppe explained that MAT does not consult the Town Attorney on every 
issue it discusses with the local officials, only those where potential exposure 
may exist and this just makes good business sense. 
 

e) Billing Detail 
 

The Board asked whether it would be possible to be more specific in the 
billing as to Òwho called whoÓ on each entry? Attorney Ruppe indicated that 
the system he uses does not easily handle this requirement, he would none 
the less look into this. 

  

Treasurer Batton asked that it be entered into the record that time spent 
researching questions about the billing are not themselves billed again. 
Attorney Ruppe assured the Board that this was not the case. 

 

11) Billing on Judicial Road 
 

Treasurer Batton has noted that the contract between Credit River and the City of 
Lakeville for sharing the costs of the reconstructing of Judicial Road does not 



specifically allow for administrative expenses to be accrued. The contract specifically 
specifies that only construction costs are to be shared. 
 
Engineer Jeff Elliott noted that not to include these charges under the contract would 
be highly unusual and that he is quite certain that this was not the intent. 
 

He will call the City of Lakeville and get this clarified.  
 

12) Re-Organization Items 
 

In view of the lateness of the hour, the Board decided to table this agenda item until 
the next meeting. 
 

13) Transfer funds from Savings to Checking 
 

At the request of Treasurer Batton, Supervisor Bruce Nilsen made a motion to 
transfer $10,0000 from the Township Savings Account to the Township General 
Checking Account. Chairman Leroy Schommer offered a second, all in favor, motion 
carried 5 Ð 0. 
 

Review and Pay Bills 
 

The Town Board approved and paid the following claims: 
 

5/20/2008 EFTS Anchor Bank May 2008 Withholding  $            1,946.94  

6/2/2008 4380 Eide Baily LLP 2007 Audit Services  $            3,000.00  

6/2/2008 4381 Kraemer Mining & Materials Purchase Rock  $               146.48  

6/2/2008 4382 MVEC Town Hall Electricity  $                 64.41  

6/2/2008 4383 MVEC Monterey Hgts Lift Station  $                 42.02  

6/2/2008 4384 MVEC South Passage Lift Station  $                 56.02  

6/2/2008 4385 Enviro Care Services Town Hall Cleaning-May  $                 61.77  

6/2/2008 4386 CenterPoint Energy Town Hall Gas  $                 81.40  

6/2/2008 4387 Xcel Energy St Francis Street Light  $                 12.18  

6/2/2008 4388 Hakanson Anderson Assoc Engineering - April 2008  $            7,695.48  

6/2/2008 4389 Art Johnson Trucking May Road Maintenance  $            2,866.50  

6/2/2008 4390 Al Aspengren May Expenses  $                 16.16  

6/2/2008 4391 Holly Batton Expenses-May  $               709.00  

6/2/2008 4392 Leroy Schommer Expenses-May  $                 42.53  

6/2/2008 4393 Tom Kraft Expenses-May  $                 20.20  

6/2/2008 4394 Brent Lawrence Expenses-May  $                 10.78  

6/2/2008 4395 Jerry Maas Expenses-May  $               192.50  

6/2/2008 4396 Webcetera New Website Design  $               450.00  

6/2/2008 4397 Klingberg Trucking Gravel Hauling  $          12,048.80  

6/2/2008 4398 Castle Rock Materials Class Five Rock  $            4,301.73  

6/2/2008 4399 Castle Rock Materials Class Five Rock  $          11,947.64  

6/2/2008 4400 Bruce Nilsen Services as Supervisor  $            1,214.40  

6/2/2008 4401 Leroy Schommer Services as Supervisor  $            1,098.97  

6/2/2008 4402 Al Aspengren Services as Supervisor  $               481.71  

6/2/2008 4403 Holly Batton Services as Treasurer  $            2,367.38  

6/2/2008 4404 Tom Kraft Services as Supervisor  $               574.06  

6/2/2008 4405 Brent Lawrence Services as Supervisor  $               937.35  

6/2/2008 4406 Jerry Maas Services as Clerk  $            3,324.60  

6/2/2008 4407 Bruce Nilsen Expenses - May  $                 47.47  

6/2/2008 4408 Dave Cuthill Deputy Treasurer-March 2008  $               180.00  

6/2/2008 4409 Private Underground Utility Locates  $               136.00  



6/2/2008 4410 Mike's Septic Town Hall Septic  $               235.00  

6/2/2008 EFTS08June Anchor Bank Withholding Taxes-June 2008  $            2,013.02  
 
Adjourn 
 

There being no further business before the Town Board, Supervisor Al Aspengren made 
a motion to adjourn, Chairman Leroy Schommer offered a second, all in favor, motion 
carried 5 - 0. The meeting adjourned at 12:18 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________  
Submitted By: (s/) Jerald R. Maas Approved By: (s/) Leroy Schommer  
Township Clerk    Chairman Board of Supervisors  
Credit River Township   Credit River Township  


